
Please Note: These minutes are pending Board approval. 
Board of Education 

Newtown, Connecticut 
 

Minutes of the Board of Education meeting held on January 26, 2023, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers, 3 Primrose Street.     
 
 D. Zukowski, Chair     C. Melillo 

J. Vouros, Vice Chair      A. Uberti 
D. Ramsey, Secretary     T. Vadas    
D. Cruson                 9  Staff   

 J. Kuzma                  3  Public   
J. Larkin                    

 A. Plante 
 K. Kunzweiler (absent) 
 D. Godino (absent) 
 
Ms. Zukowski called the meeting to order at 7:04 p.m.  
Item 1 – Pledge of Allegiance 
Item 2 – Technology Budget 
Dennis Colclough, IT Director, presented his budget. 
Mr. Cruson questioned the decrease in the number of laptops to Chromebook and heard the 
Chromebook have limitations. 
Mr. Colclough said there are shortcomings and he is looking to provide better access to 
software. 
 
Mrs. Larkin asked if there was tech and library media support in the buildings. 
Mr. Colclough said there is a stipend for the elementary library media specialists when there is a 
problem with a Chromebook.  There is also tech support at Reed and the middle school. 
 
Mrs. Larkin asked for an explanation of stipends. 
Mr. Melillo said a stipend is for work after their school day or during prep time. A stipend would 
also fall outside of their job description.   
Mrs. Uberti said it’s compensatory time for work outside of the day.   
 
Mr. Ramsey asked how many devices are breaking down that can be repaired in-house. 
Mr. Colclough said there is about a 10% breakage rate.  Most repairs are in-house but some are 
on warrantee.   
 
Mrs. Plante asked when we would know if we will get help from the Town’s capital non-recurring 
account.   
Ms. Zukowski said we are up front with our costs to the Board of Finance and it is their choice to 
use those funds to help with their recommendation going to the Legislative Council. 
 
Mr. Vouros asked that when a student graduates if we give them a Chromebook or sell it to 
them. 
Mr. Colclough stated we would have to look into the Charter to see if it should be sold or if we 
can give it to the student. 
 
Ms. Zukowski asked Mr. Colclough to have his slides for the Board of Finance meeting. 
 
Item 3 – Continuing Education Budget 
 



Board of Education    -2-    January 26, 2023 
 
Jennifer Arnold, Director of Adult and Continuing spoke about her budget. 
Mr. Ramsey appreciated the summer programs and asked if the citizenship classes have 
increased over the years. 
Mrs. Arnold would get those numbers from Werace in Danbury.     
 
Item 4 – Plant Budget  
Bob Gerbert, Director of Facilities, spoke about his budget. 
Mrs. Larkin said that no one realizes how much he and his group do for the town. 
Mr. Gerbert said we have great people who love and are committed to their job. 
Mr. Ramsey said the custodial staff enhances the school atmosphere and they did so much 
during Covid. 
Mr. Gerbert and his staff appreciated the November newsletter, which highlighted his 
department and staff. 
  
Ms. Zukowski noted the move to a one-year plan. 
Mr. Gerbert said there was a shift in priorities year to year.  He meets with principals in the fall 
regarding projects they have in mind.  Some things change over the course of the school year 
or other things have big costs and are pushed back.  It is easier to manage one year. 
 
Ms. Zukowski asked if the Town had a five-year plan. 
Mr. Gerbert was not sure but probably a short-term list for one year. 
 
Mr. Melillo stated there has been a discussion on projects scheduled out.  There is no 
guarantee we will be there in the year the project is listed.  The longer you go out, the harder it 
is to pinpoint projects so we decided on a one year plan.   
 
Ms. Zukowski felt the principal’s first priority is what is happening in the classrooms and 
reaching out to parents.  She is concerned we might miss things easily managed earlier than 
later.  The five-year plan makes us proactive.  Are there inspections of the HVAC systems? 
Mr. Gerbert said a lot is captured in contract services.  Our maintenance people react quickly 
when there’s a problem.  We have done capital projects to avoid bigger problems.   
 
Ms. Zukowski referred to furniture purchases and felt it would be good to pull some out and 
asked if we could use the non-lapsing account. 
Mrs. Vadas said that money is more for projects, not consumable items.  
Mr. Gerbert felt it was not wise to use that account.  
 
Item 5 – Benefits Budget and Item 6 – General Services Budget 
Mrs. Vadas introduced Angela Walsh who joined her for her budget discussions. 
Mrs. Larkin asked if there was a lunch fund that could help with equipment repairs. 
Mrs. Vadas said the fund is more for equipment repairs and she would get more information. 
 
Mr. Melillo said we need to find out if we have to use it for repairs. 
Mr. Cruson thought there was an approval process to use those funds. 
Mrs. Vadas said there was not because it’s self-funded. 
Mr. Melillo spoke about the fluctuation of guards this year because there is a lot of competition 
with higher paying districts.  We train our guards and then lose them. 
 
Mark Pompano, Director of Security, said it’s extremely challenging to retain guards.  We had 
one only stay a month because of salary and the driving distance from Stratford.  Darien is now 
$36.75 per hour.  The incident in Uvalde really made other districts hire armed guards.  



Board of Education    -3-    January 26, 2023 
 
Item 7 – Transportation Budget 
Mrs. Vadas spoke about the transportation budget. 
Mrs. Larkin said the bus reduction was after we had the budget and she was concerned about 
next year. 
 
Mr. Cruson said we had unexpected expenses this year to fill gaps and was concerned there 
was not enough money for additional expenses.   
Mrs. Vadas noted that we had to use money from the activities fund so it’s not increasing this 
budget.   
 
Ms. Zukowski expects it will cost more for out of district transportation.  We have to come up 
with a way to transport students because more coach buses are being used.   
Mrs. Vadas said we put more money in the transportation contract for sports. 
 
Mr. Melillo needs a solution to the lack of bus drivers and was having a meeting with All-Star the 
next day.  We tried to pay more, reroute, asked the Governor, the Commissioner of Education 
and State representatives and was tired of hearing it’s a Newtown thing.  He understands there 
is a driver shortage as EdAdvance is having the same issue.  Dan Rosenthal will be joining the 
meeting also and he would report back.  We are looking at all of our options. 
 
Item 8 – Letter Regarding Transportation 
MOTION: Mrs. Larkin moved that the Board of Education approve sending a letter to CAPSS 
and State Representatives regarding transportation.  Mrs. Kuzma seconded. 
 
Ms. Zukowski referred to the two letters and asked if anything was missing. 
Mr. Cruson explained his version as he was concerned about it being Newtown specific and 
made it clear this was a State problem and State action was appropriate.  His letter explained 
what we were dealing with and added using the National Guard.  He felt CABE and CAPSS 
should just be copied on the letter.   
 
Mr. Ramsey feels the public needs to understand the administration and Board of Education are 
doing everthing they can.  He feels Mr. Cruson’s version was crystal clear and offered a proper 
context of this situation with it being a site problem.   
 
Ms. Zukowski spoke to other Board chairs and some have no problems.   
 
Mrs. Plante said the point is there is a problem and we want to ask for help.  She supports  
Mr. Cruson’s letter.   
Mrs. Kuzma agrees it’s bigger than Newtown.  It’s not the time to have the tier conversation.  
She supports Mr. Cruson’s letter also and copying CABE and CAPSS. 
 
Mrs. Larkin recommended addressing it also to our Attorney General.   
MOTION: Mr. Cruson moved to amend the motion to include in the salutation Attorney General 
Tong, Governor Lamonte, the Commissioner of Education and cc CABE and CAPSS.   
Mr. Ramsey seconded.  Motion passes unanimously.   
 
MOTION: Mr. Cruson moved to amend the motion that Ms. Zukowski, in conjunction with  
Mr. Cruson, provide the final version of the letter and send it out.  Mrs. Plante seconded.  Motion 
passes unanimously. 
 
 



Board of Education    -4-    January 31, 2023 
 
Item 9 – Public Participation 
Alison Smith, 30 Taunton Hill Road, asked the Board to preserve her position of library para.  
She will not fill one of the vacancies if her position was cut. Don’t cut the support of our libraries. 
 
Phil Carroll, 1 Fieldstone Drive, spoke about the bus driver shortage and imposing fines for not 
providing drivers.  Go back to a three-tier system. They aren’t paying drivers enough.  They 
should be responsible to pay for the sports buses if they don’t provide drivers. 
 
MOTION: Mr. Vouros moved to adjourn.  Mr. Cruson seconded.  Motion passes unanimously. 
 
Item10 - Adjournment 
The meeting adjourned at 10:20 p.m. 
 
       Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
 
       _______________________________ 
            Donald Ramsey 
                            Secretary 
 
 














































































































	1_26_23_Minutes
	Att.1
	Att.2

